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H: As you are probably aware', f was t a l l e d  t o  Camp David on November 

20th -- t h a t  would have been 1972 -- i n  other words, 13 days a f t e r  the 

e lect ions.  I f rank l y  thought I was going there on t h i s  occasion t o  

discuss some aspects of the Agency's and the In te l l i gence  Community 

budgets, and why I thought tha t  was the matter a t  hand I can expla in  

l a t e r ,  because I am going t o  have t o  go back i n  order t o  make a couple 

o f  th ings c lear .  When I went up t o  Camp David i n ' a  he l i cop te r  with 

some other members o f  the Administration, and there were three men w i t h  

c l i p  boards t h a t  were sor t ing  out  the various people t h a t  would come 

up wi th  me; there was Haldeman, Erhlichman and George Shultz, and I was 

asked t o  wa i t  i n  one o f  the hquses f o r  a f e w  minutes, and then I sup- 

pose maybe 15 o r  20 minutes l a t e r  I was i n v i t e d  t o  Nixon's house, the 

name o f  which now eludes me, and there, he, and Haldeman and I had our 

conversation. Wixon introduced the conversation by simply saying t h a t  

i n  the new Administrat ion he was anxious t o  get some new ideas and re- 

newed f igures  and f e l t  t ha t  some people who had held a j o b  i n  h i s  f i r s t  

Administration, o r  even e a r l i e r  than that,  would do b e t t e r  t o  be changed 

around, tha t  he f e l t  t h a t  i t  was t i m e  f o r  a new Di rec tor  t o  be put  i n t o  

the Agency and j u s t  wanted my react ion t o  the  s ta te  o f  a f f a i r s .  

8: Was Hal deman present? 

H: Haldeman, w i t h  the ye l low pad i n  hand making some notes. So, I s a i d  ' 

wel l  c e r t a i n l y  I rea l i zed  t h a t . 1  served a t  h i s  convenience, one wants 

t o  be one t o  make these changes, we had a ret i rement p o l i c y  i n  the 

Agency t h a t  you could r e t i r e  a t  age 60 and I was ge t t i ng  on close t o  

t h a t  a t  t ha t  po int .  And in te res t ing ly ,  Nixon expressed considerable . 
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surprise that ( a )  that  we had this  policy and ( b )  t h a t  I was getting 

on towards 60. 

o f  th i s  conversation.. . . . 
I And, i n  short, i t  was abundantly clear that  the center 

B: I t ' s  a remarkable l i t t l e  gadget 

H: I sn ' t  i t .  

the f i r s t  time, t h a t  i s  entirely unclear t o  me, on the fact  t h a t  I had 

been i n  the Agency for a long time and was really an effective careerist 

and that  therefore this was going t o  be the end of a career a t  age 60. 

So ,  a t  that  p o i n t ,  Nixon either refocused o r  focused for 

. 

gears 
So t h a t  he a t  t h a t  moment seemed t o  mentally switch/ and said well, 

would you l ike t o  be an Ambasssdor? And I replied tha t  I wasri!t a t  a l l  

sure t h a t  I wanted t o  be an Ambassador, that  I wanted t o  have a look a t  

maybe this was the time for  me t o  leave the Federal Government and go on 

and do something else.  So there was some conversation back and forth and 

he then said, we1 1 ,  look, wouldn't you 1 i ke t o  go t o  bloscow as our Ambas- 

. ,  

sador? 

because I t h o u g h t  t h a t  the Russians m i g h t  take a rather dim view of my 

And I said no, I d i d d t  t h i n k  t h a t  t h a t  would be a very good idea 

presence there. And he t h o u g h t  a minute and t h e n  said, well, I guess 

maybe you are right. B u t  where would you l ike  t o  go, I mean hypothe- 

t i ca l ly ,  I mean, he said, maybe you d o n ' t  want t o  be, b u t  i f  you were, 

where would you want '  to  go? And i t  was p u t  i n  such a way that i t  seemed 

t o  me t h a t  i t  was desirable for me t o  come up w i t h  an answer a t  that  

point. 

any place, I would.like to  go to  Iran, where I t h i n k  I could make a 

So I said well, I t h i n k  tha t  i f  I were t o  go as an Ambassador 

contribution. 

e lse  i n  mind for  Joe Farland who's i n  Iran now and that  will be fine. 

You t ry  and make up your mind as soon as you can and l e t  us know whether 

He said that's a good idea. Said we've got something 

you will go t o  Iran or not .  There was a l i t t l e  more desultory conversa- 
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t i o n  and tha t  was the end of the session, and I got back from the 

he l i cop ter  and came back t o  Washington. 

mentioned e a r l i e r  t h a t  I thought the  purpose o f  my going t o  Camp 

David was d i f f e r e n t  than it turned out t o  be was the fol lowing, wa 

because on November the 7th, which was e lec t i on  day t h a t  year, I 

had lunch w i th  A1 Haig. 

f o r  some time; he was always too busy, too occupied and too  much 

going on, and I c a l l e d  him up and said, look, t h i s  i s  e lec t ion  day, 

I know you don ' t  have very much t o  do on elect ion'day, come on.out 

and have lunch. So he came out t o  the Agency and we had lunch. And 

somehow o r  other the subject came up about the Di rectorsh ip and so 

on. 

d i d n ' t  know how long I wanted t o  continue i n  the job and so on and 

he said w e l l  I would have tho igh t  the sensible th ing  f o r  you t o  do 

Now the reason that I 

I had been wanting t o  have lunch w i t h  him 

-' n . . I ,  

- 

And he sa id  something about r e t i r i n g  a t  age 60 and' I said  I 

would be w a i t  u n t i l  the Administration gets going i n  i t s  second s i t -  

t ing, so t o  speak, and then decide to  r e t i r e  when you want to, and I 

t h ink  probably the chances are you ought t o  be able t o  have a l o t  o f  

influence on who your successor i s  going t o  be. I n  short, Haig had - .  

no i n k l i n g  a t  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  t ime t h a t  the decision had been made 

t h a t  I should leave. 

a f t e r  I came back from Camp David, 1 was i n  Kissinger 's o f f i c e  on some 

other  matter and he came around h i s  desk and said, what happened a t  

Camp David yesterday? And I hesi ta ted f o r  a moment cause I was, you 

know, t r y i n g  t o  f i g u r e  out  i n  my own mind exac t ly  how t o  r e p l y  t o  h i s  

The other i nd i ca to r  i n  t h i s  was t h a t  the day 

question. 

t e l l  me I'll c a l l  Haldeman, because he obviously didnt ' t  know what had 

gone on a t  Camp David; he simply knew t h a t  I had beer. on the schedule 

But i n  a ra the r  w a f f l i s h  way he sa id i f  you don ' t  want t o  



t o  go there bu t  had no idea o f  the import o f  what was t ranspi r ing.  

So, i t  was c lea r  t h a t  K i s s i n g e r  and Haig, the people w i t h  whom I 

worked most c lose ly  i n  the White House, d i d  not  know about t h i s .  

My own view i s  t h a t  the people d i r e c t l y  around Nixon -- Haldeman and 

Erhlichman and ce r ta in  others -- never wanted me i n  there i n  the 
I t h ink  t h a t  t h i s  was a decis ion on Nixon's p a r t  which they were no t  very favorab 
f i r s t  place./ I t h ink  tha t  t h e i r  f e e l i n g  about it, despi te rrly best 

e f f o r t s  t o  get along, was that  a f t e r  the Watergate business and the 

famous smoking gun episode, I t h ink  they had even less use f o r  me than 

they had before, and that,  therefore, th is  was a c lose ly  kept fee l ing,  

r i g h t  around Nixon, on the p a r t  of these domestic advisors, t h a t  Helms 

should be out as soon as they could conveniently do i t . This a lso 

f i t t e d - i n  w i t h -  a.1o.t o f  c r i t i c i s m  tha t  Nixon had been getting, p a r t i -  

c u l a r l y  f r o m  John Connally, about keeping on people from previous 

Administrations. 

t r a t i o n  not  a Democratic Administration, why do you keep a l l  these 

He sa id we gotta, now we've got  a Republican Adminis- 

people tha t  Johnson had here and so on. So I t h ink  t h a t  i f  you could 

have wrapped i t  a l l  together there may have been a complex of reasons 

f o r  ge t t i ng  r i d  o f  me which, whatever these various reasons were, they 

a l l  came out  t o  the same conclusion, whether i t  was Watergate, whether 

i t  was why I shouldn ' t  have been there i n  the f i r s t  place, whether i t  

was the f a c t  t h a t  Nixon thought t h a t  there was a be t te r  j o b  t o  be done 

a t  the  Agency, no matter how you looked a t  i t  from h i s  standpoint, 

there were always th ings which added up t o  (a )  ge t t i ng  somebody e lse  

i n  there. It was equal ly  c lea r  t h a t  he had no t  e n t i r e l y  made up h i s  

mind a t  the time of the session w i th  me who was going t o  be the successor. 

I f  he had made up h i s  mind a t  t ha t  time', and somebody was going t o  be it, 
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b o t h  he and  Haldeman played a good game o f  pretending that they had 

not made up their  minds. 

be glad t o  have them, bu.W&-+ 

-s. I said I ’ d  l ike t o  see somebody from i n -  

side get the job .  Well, he didn’t know i f  i t  was a good idea t o  have 

somebody from inside; maybe someone could be brought in from outside, 

you know, new blood, re-invigorating, new ideas and so forth. 

He said i f  you’ve g o t  any suggestions, we’d 

JW. 

--v 
1 c- 

B: Did he set  a date P -ef y@w- 
. ‘4. / 

I . ,  - - T  resignation or was this &FJ\ L e ,  L-U, -*-‘ ,C-.-L.-~ ,- - - . I C  

3 -  I: 
H: No, as a matter of fact  t h a t  turned o u t  t o  be a b i t  of a shambles 

afterwards, because I got  a coup1 e o f  call s from Hal deman, subsequently, 

asking me i f  I had made up my mind about the Ambassadorship, and when 

I f i n a l l y  d i d  make up my mind and called and he said fine,  i t  was my I *  

understanding t h a t  I was to” s iay  quite a b i t  longer. In other words, 
4 c?:? b-U/Vt. L - A - . C y  

*; i f  n o t  then, a t  least  for 

a couple o f  months. Then, as everybody was working away, a l l  of a sudden, 

I maybe to  about my . I  

. b i n g ,  Schlesinqer’s appointment was announced. 

B :  

H: The 30th of March. 

B; The 30th,  t ha t ’ s  r i g h t .  

Dick, awi&+w& , I can’t remember when your birthday>--i-s>.-. 

H: 6 6  , * - 4 w a - m  

-&&*reiri-*s1.t +M?+eu . .  , d a ; y ~ ~ ~ W - # i X Q ~ W ~  

- k i J m v  ’ iS>mtr”-hd 

f3bJ-- * *- & C ”  +ge*.- b . .  

a b w t n u a ~ ~  -- + - 2 1  was obviously very .--... B 

surprised that i t  should be happening i n  early February when I t h o u g h t  
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I was going t o  be s tay ing on a t  l e a s t  probably i n t o  March. So i n  
.. 

e f f e c t  I was out o f  a job, 

a l l  t h a t  long a t i m e  between tha t  and my being picked up by the  State 

Departmnt as Ambassador t o  Iran, and some arrangements were made t o  

s o r t  o f  keep me going a t  l e a s t  i n  between,J n- 

hat 
. .  

ias- i 3 s u p . i n t n r P z t  u 
s&i& %n the chaos o f  Government, a l l  o f  a sudden something happens 

you never a n t i c i p a t d a n d  when I ca l l ed  up and asked about it, they said, 

oh God, we fo rgo t  a l l  about that .  So you know I don' t  know whether they 

fo rgo t  o r  d i d n ' t ,  and i t ' s  not  important t o  h is tory ,  I'm simply trying 

* t  

t o  convey the  idea t h a t  what looked l i k e  a p lan maybe t o  wa i t  f o r  rrcy 

60th b i r thday  turned out i n  the bureaucrat ic h u r l y  bu r l y  t o  have been 

je t t i soned.  Now I don ' t  know whether t h a t  gives you a f u l l  enough state-  

ment surrounding these circumstances o r  not, i t ' s  about a l l  I remember; I 

t h i n k  i t ' s  reasonably accurate. Whether my c o n j e c t w  are cor rec t  o r  

not, I don ' t  know. 

belong i n  an Agency h i s to ry ,  a comnent worth making i s  t ha t  serving w i t h  

President Nixon had a d i f f i c u l t  aspect i n  the sense t h a t  he constant ly 

disparaged everybody i n  the Executive Branch, almost everybody. 

would describe the  State Department people as a bunch o f  p in-s t r iped 

A 
.W-= 

I th ink  tha t  maybe, although i t  possibly doesn' t  

He 

cookie pushers who r e a l l y  d i d n ' t  have America's i n t e r e s t  a t  heart, that  

they were accommodationists w i th  the Russians and so' fo r th .  He would 

c r i t i c i z e  the A i r  Force, they cou ldn ' t  bomb anything t h a t  they were 

supposed t o  bomb i n  North Vietnam, they couldn ' t  , h i t  the targets  and, 

i n  short, there was nobody . that  came out  unscathed. 

He was c r i t i c i z i n g  the A i r  Force t o  the A i r  Force, o r  was he c r i t i c i z i n g  B: 
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H: He was always c r i t i c i z i n g  somebody else t o  somebody else.  I mean 

i t  wasn't one o f  these th ings where he c r i t i z e d  the Agency t o  me; . 

he c r i t i c i z e d  the Agency t o  somebody else.  And he was constant ly 

disparaging the Executive Branch, which a f t e r  a l l  by law he was sup- 

posed t o  be the head of .  I t  was probably an extraordinary th ing, i t  

was l i k e  a fa ther  constant ly c r i t i z i n g  chi ldren, you know. So, he 

* 

net ted t h i s  once, as you remember a t  the beginning o f  the second 

Administration, he pu l led  almost everything i n t o  the White House band' >-I 

then he appointed a 

There i s  some damned l i t t l e  button here t h a t  

the r e s t  o f  the tape). 

(tape cuts o f f )  

B: (tape goes blank f o r  

S IDE 2 OF TAPE -- F i r s t  por t ion  blank and then i t  picks up here 

I th ink  the best t h i n g  we can do i s  j u s t  t o  continue on. H: 

B:  Dick, as I remember it, I worked on the case, the  White House 

H: Ah w a i t ,  excuse me, there was one, I was going i n t o  t h i s  business o f  

Nixon and the Executive Branch, s o r t  o f  j u s t  l e t  me j u s t  f i n i s h ,  

because I ,  t o  the extent t h a t  there i s  any i n t e r e s t  i n  my react3on 

t o  a l l  t h i s ,  l e t ' s  pu t  it, record it. You w i l l  remember, therefore,  

t ha t  i n  the second Nixon Administration, he brought everything i n  

the Executive Branch, i n  a sense, i n t o  the White House. 

t h a t  weren't handled by e i t h e r  Haldeman, Erhlichman, o r  Kissinger 

were put i n  the  hands o f  a White House Counselor, o f  whom I said d- 

Those things 

7 
were. a t  l e a s t  two more, one was George Shultz, who s o r t  o f  handled 

ce r ta in  f i nanc ia l  aspects o f  Government, another was James 

who had housing and things o f  t ha t  kind. A t  the same time, Nixon 

put  h i s  men from ins ide  the White House- i n  pos i t ions o f  

t 
9 
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I 

I .  

s e n i o r i t y  i n  var iou r tmen t s  r o i  j town, l i k e  Eg i l  K r  g was 

sent t o  Transportation, I th ink,  and somebody e l s e  was sent t o  some 

o ther  department. In short, he was sending h i s  own people out, from 

the White House, t o  be sure tha t  he had people on loca t ion  who would 

know about what was going on i n  these departments t h a t  he could t r u s t ,  

And i n  ' the meantime, he had pu l led  the whole Government, through these 

Counselors, and Kissinger and various others, i n t o  the White House, so"' . nrl 8 

' t h a t  he f e l t  t h a t  he had more o f  a contro l  over t h i s  vast, 'spraal ing r'?rD ' 

bureauracy which he so distrusted. 

seemed t o  me was tha t  here he was disparaging everybody else, the i m -  

And the u l t imate irony i t  .always 

p l i c a t i o n  being the only  smart f e l l ow  i n  town was Nixon and .if there 

were any other  s m a r t  fellows, they were r i g h t  around him i n  the White . '  ' * ' * '  

House. But along comes Watergate, where he uses the most t e r r i b l e  

judgement i n  the world and t h i s  t o  me - i s  the crowning i rony  of h i s  

Administration. That here he thought he was such a b r i g h t  guy and he 

p u l l s  t h e  dumbest t r i c k  t h a t  anybody could p u l l  and loses the Presi- 

dency. 

being so insecure as he was and n o t  proper ly appreciat ing the"di'ff i- 

I mention t h i s  because i t  has always appeared t o  me t h a t  by 
. * 

c u l t i e s ,  and a t  the same t i m e  the contr ibut ion,  o f  others, t h a t  he i n  

h i s  own mind came t o  th ink  tha t  he was the only  fe l low t h a t  could . 
f igure out  anything s t r a i g h t  and made t h i s  f a t a l  mistake, G 

' t o  see the t o t a l  flaws o f  h i s  Administration. This by way o f .exp la in -  

i n g  t h a t  I f igured  h i s  second Administration, he was r e a l l y  reaching 

out  t o  cont ro l  the Government through h i s  people t h a t  were beholden' to 

him, known t o  him, and believed l o y a l  t o  him. And t h a t  he wanted t o  

a 



get r i d  of  anybody around tha t  d i d n ' t ' f i t  i n t o  tha t  p a r t i c u l a r  pat- 

tern.  And -, by and la rge ,  he went through w i th  t h i s  p r e t t y  

we l l .  I mean there were some deviations, lad there were some excep- 

t ions,  probably, but  by and large, he d i d  it. 

Q*u.c 

"1 Yd* 'L L A .  [ -  tJ% 141&5 - .  
Y t  

8 L 1, '-.IT 

rr B: Dick, there was some evidence 

-s - t h a t  the President seemed t o  do just"as you said, 

clean 4de house and establ ish his, owngersonal cont ro l  .-There a lso  

wesipuni t ive -)in a t  least%his r e ~ r W " ~  

- G ~ i 3 ' n  ' '*= 

- -d"t" 7 -  l r s r ?  * c\- ' d * L  
I 

t h a t  were made avai lab le somehow. -Was there any in- .  

d i ca t i on  o f  t ha t  i n  h i s  demeanor o r  the way he ta lked t o  you o r  the 

way he appeared? 

H: No, i n t e r e s t i n g l y  enough, i n  the in t roduc tory .par t  o f  our ta lk ,  as he ' 4  

was t e l l i n g  me tha t  he wanted ,to make these changes, he went out o f  h i s  

way t o  say t h a t  I had done a very good job i n  the Agency and t h a t  he 
9 

appreciated it. 

he a t  l e a s t  sa id  i t  and he was s o r t  o f  pu t t i ng  i t  on the record, and 

there was no c r i t i c i s m  o f  my performance e i t h e r  by imp l i ca t i on  or 

Now whether he bel ieved t h i s  or d i d n ' t  be l ieve th is,  

d i rec t l y ,  e i t h e r  from him o r  Haldeman. 

B: He made no reference t o  any spec i f i c  areas or a c t i v i t i e s  i n  which he 

had been d i ssa t i s f i ed?  

H: No. 

* t  rd Lt G'LS 
9: Well, obviously, there was a l o t  o f  speculat ion around town is-yeU A 

~ S K  you*tki.c. There 

was a lso an impression i n  town, amongst some o f  your f r iends,  t h a t  

the White House was pu t t i ng  out tkoce things, a l l eg ing  bad performance 

9 



i n  certain areas. 

t h a t  Colson, for example, was peddling rumors about? 

Had you any evidence t h a t  th is  was t a k i n g  place,  

H: ti9. I have no d o u b t  t h a t  i t  was true t h a t  they were being peddled 

around, t h a t  was a Nixonian way of d o i n g  business on various occasions, 

b u t  i t  didn' t  come t o  my attention. 
1 

B: One of  the alleged reasons for Nixon's alleged dissatisfaction was 

i n  the coordinating field,  i n  the management o f  t h e  Community. You 

received a memorandum from Schlesinger, as I remember i t ,  inW$eWall 

o f  '72. Do you remember that memorandum? * 

'it-. 

I 

. H :  Yes, I remember i t  very well. 

B: Did you take t h a t  as an expression of Presidential dissatisfaction w i t h  

the area of community t h i n g s  i n  general? 

H :  No, a t  the time, perhaps I should have viewed i t  differently, b u t  the ~. . 
L-m* 

way I did view i t  a t  the time, O B E ~  that i t  was a -- w h a t  i s  the r i g h t  

word -- an entitlement o r  constitution, or statement or whatever the 
c 

proper legal word i s ,  t o  me t o  exert greater influence because a t  t h a t  
LUA *&Lu&L*$A, 8 

time theoretically I didn' t  3 have)\ o I regarded this  Bs minvitation t o  , 

step o u t  and do more coordinating t o  the extent t h a t  I was capable o f  

d o i n g  i t .  

tor t o  go too fa r  because I certainly recognized, as I t h i n k  most every- 

body else d i d ,  t h a t  the idea of a Director o f  Central Intelligence 

te l l ing a Secretary of Defense w h a t  he could do with his budget  i n  

I t  seemed t o  me a t  the time t h a t  they were asking the Direc- 

certain areas was one of those t h i n g s  t h a t  was going t o  be a non- 
b I r  

0 c 
s ta r te r ,  and t h a t  one was m a v e  to do this  more through persuasion 

t h a n  o/ . through force majeure. Now whether 

Nixon ever focused on these problems or n o t ,  I honestly d o n ' t  know, 

10 



because i t  became clear t o  me t h a t  Nixon real'ly didn't know very 

much about  the Intelligence Community, never had, never did. He 

didn't understand the complexities of how we were go ing  t o  get into 

relationship w i t h  anything e1se.a A +ha- h.erd. a 

' h Jim Schlesinge over in t h e  Office o f  Manage- r- 

ment and Budget and I imagine Waccepted what Schlesinger told h i m  

a b o u t  these th ings ,  probably. B u t ,  the'document t h a t  I go t ,  I didn't 

d t LLA?- 

I .  

regard as a criticism, I regarded i t  as an invitation t o  do more'biid. ?na-C , 

t h a t  i t  was an au thor i ty  over the President's signature t o  do more i n  

the coord ina t ing  f ield.  
- 

P B: As ye. read Schlesinger's memorandum and the Presidential Directive 

which resulted from the P w  Schlesinger proposals aut i t  - 2 L  

seemed t o  me t h a t  Schlesinger had dredged up  and identified a l l  kuk 9 
I &A 4&.&.t,.t &+-d L* b-A 

problems in the coordinating field,  particularly v a & w  relationships 

between the  Director o f  Central Intelligence and the Secretary of 
ft? - 

Defense, b u t  had found no indication k understanding what  had been &-a. '4' 
. the Presidential Directive made tk.ruL 2 number o f  recommendations, 

a l l  of which  really were completely compatible w i t h  w h a t  you were doing 

already. There were three recomnendations t h a t  called for  either an 

extension of your authority or f o r  ,you t o  do t h i n g s  a l i t t l e  different- 
~b-%A4A.A-L1;t.u&d3-Lhrc 

1 

the other had t o  do w i t h  a cryptographic command which 

# 

you also c,.p.&A. 1.. ,sZ, I , r ,  

mendation, however, I would appreciate your comments on. 

you remember i t ,  i t ' s  not  a new recomme 

I am sure 
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shou.ld delegate your au thor i ty  over the Agency, over CIA,  the 
+**i-t e 

management o f  C I A  t o  your Deputies u~olo you, S u r s e l f ,  assumed res- 
1 

p o n s i b i i i t y  f o r  the Comunity. 1 

H: Yes, I do remember it, and I must confess t h a t  my pr iva te ,  i n  o ther  
i t  

words my own react ion wi thout my e v e r  having given/any 

ora l  expression, was tha t  as far  as I was concerned t h a t  was no t  on, 
1 

-- A 

because I k ew a l o t  more about the Agency, having worked there f o r  

twenty years,than my Deputies who were brought i n - f r o m  the outside and. ' I - -  

i t  wouldn' t  seem t o  me t o  make an awful l o t  o f  sense f o r  those' fe l lows 

t o  take ove r  running the Agency and me running the Community when I 

:re ( ~ ~ J W L  $c2 

-i'' ' 
1 

thought t h a t  the obverse ought t o  be the case because i f  there was 

anyone tha t  was going t o  be in terested i n  the  Community, i t  ought t o  

be the generals, the admirals and so f o r t h  t h a t  were my Deputies who d id  

understand something about the m i l i t a r y  i n  the Cornunity and t b y  were 

much b e t t e r  geared t o  do t h a t  k ind  of coordination, probably, than I was. 

Wel l ,  won't the pub l ic  and the Congressh the other  branches o f  the 

Government, ho ld the D i  rec to r  o f  Central I n t e l  1 igence accountable(pter 

a l l  he i s  by s ta tu te  the Di rector  of the Central In te l l igence Agencyr / 

uAL3c 
,4+ 

B: 

i 

P d  can he absolve h imsel f  o f  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  these h igh ly  complex, 
, 

and sens i t i ve  operations, ? a 

H: 
, 

Cer ta in ly  not. 

D i rec to r  attempted t o  spend m o s t  o f  h i s  time coordinat ing in,t&e Com- 

munity and t u r n  the running o f  the  Agency over t o  h i s  Depdties, t h a t  

the minute something went wrong i t  would be he who was he ld  responsible 

by the Congress and tha t  i t  would be he who would'have t o  go up and 

There was no question i n  rrly mind tha t  even i f  the  
, d  

/- 

e--. ;' I.-. 

,* 4 ..d + 'I .t.- 
LJ 
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tes t i fy  and he couldn't poss bly prod or palm thi's o f f  on his 

B: I believe a somewhat similar recommendation was made t o  Allen Dulles. 

And as I remember i t ,  he had the same reaction xi you have, a a d A 4 w  * k  

. + .  T h a t  rai ses another phi  1 osophi cal or -mytho.llogi cal 

question -- t- much of the discussionLof.&he-Dire&-twkA--w i l I w 1  I 

. &&.&Lct.JI 

responsibility for the Community &ithe concept of two7hats:. You are . . . . . . . - 

supposed t o  wear a h a t  for the Community and a h a t  i n  your capacity 

as the Director of the Agency. 

theory? 

I've never had any problem w i t h  the two-hat idea. 

idea. 

an organization i n  a command sense and a t ' the  same time walk aside from 

that and look a t  his own organization i n  the context of other  relation- 

ships, such as the Intel1 igence Communi ty ,and make reasonably objective 

What i s  your reaction t o  the two-hat 

H: I think i t ' s  a good , 
I d o n ' t  think i t ' s  beyind human endeavor for a man t o  try and r u n  

' t L ,  judgements. 

more practical, and actually far more effective, t o  t r y  to solve the 

Community and the Agency problems i n  that  fashion than i t  is t o  t ry  

and set  up some intelligence czar who sits down i n  the White House w i t h  

no staff and attmepts t o  make a l l  o f  these judgements sort  of i n  vaccuo b 

&. I realize that that  concept has a l o t  of art iculate supporters in 

Washington b u t  I don't t h i n k  i t ' s  a good concept. And I would submit 

t h a t  i f  we have t o  find out these th ings  by t ry ing  a l l  these different 

kinds of experiments in order t o  demonstrate tha t ' th i s  doesn't work, 

I see no reason why t h a t  can't be done. I t h i n k  i t ' s  f a r  

13 



o r  t h a t  doesn t work, the other th ing  doesn', work, i t ' s  gonna be 

a very expensive k ind  o f  organizat ional  procedure and t h a t  the way 

the Community is organized now, i t  seems t o  me t h a t  i t ' s  the way 

i t  ought t o  stay organized. Have a Direc tor  and Deputy D i rec tor  out  

there and have them d iv ide  a l l  these chores between them i n  whatever 
.&- 

L L L d d  
. $  

fashion t h a t  seems t o  be iase compatible w i t h  t h e i r  personal i ty,  t h e i r  
I 8"- 

knowledge, then.background, and a l l  the r e s t  o f  i t . 
I B: O f  course, you can argue t h a t  the Di rector  r e a l l y  on ly  needs one hat  
, L b A  

the Head o f  the Central In te l l igence Agency, he i s  the head o f  t he  

Agency which i s  the u l t imate  consumer o f  i n te l l i gence  by s ta tu te  and 

i n  t h a t  capaci ty the appropriate person t o  provide guidance t o  the 

Community. g i d + i a W e  

arqued, I t h ink  t h a m  b!- 
I I th ink  the important 

th ings i s  t o  recognize the basic r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  o f  the Agency t o  see tha t  

the k ind  o f  th ings are going on t h a t  are necessary iwaxler t o  provide 

aa adequate i n te l l i gence  s e w k &  tr\CLY.L 
I t h ink  where the question o f  the D i rec tor ' s  o b j e c t i v i t y  when i t  comes 

t o  Community a f f a i r s  arises, i t ' s  not  so much i n  tha t  u l t imate e s t i -  

mative function, o r  the u l t imate ana ly t i c  funct ion,  bu t  much more i n  

the n i t t y  g r i t t y  o f  operations where people are involved, money i s  

involved, who's gonna do what chore, i s  the Agency gonna c o l l e c t  codes 

H: 

and cyphers, o r  i s  NSA gonna go out and c o l l e c t  codes and cyphers, 

i t ' s  i n  these matters, I th ink,  t h a t  the  question o f  the  o b j e c t i v i t y  

ar ises much more than i n  the pos i t ion  o f  the  u l t imate  user and the 

u l t ima te  consumer. 

l A  



I 

I 

8: So, as I understand i t ,  there i& no expression, specifically, of 

dissatisfaction w i t h  the way you were managing the Cornunity or  coordi- 

n a t i n g  .@t the Community, ei ther directly from the President or from 

individual$ l! members of  the White House 

s t a f f ?  

H:  I t  was never mentioned to  me. 

B :  DO you remember - there were any commendations when you were A -  

, 4 * L & G  

&r;%i.A 

t fl',! &.,;e e&.+- 

managing the Community wrote t o  you or poke to you1 CLLJ t---bbi 
6 .J e.**+ 
r : ,,I &. t t+ 'C 

H: I don't recall any. I don't recall any. 

6: I t  s t icks i n  my mind t h a t  I heard somewhere that Weinburger had commented, 

when he was Director of the, I guess you would cal 9 i t  the Bureau of the 

Budget, a t  t h a t  time, d i d  comment favorably on your performance. 

H: Well, th is  I ,  my memory i s 'no t  sharp on this. I do recall that  Cynthia 

and I were down a t  Cape Canaveral t o  watch the l a s t  Apollo launch, that  

Weinburger happened to  be down there, and i f  you recall the launch was 

delayed and there was plentyof time t o  s i t  around w i t h  various people, 
L ua s. 0 

&m were visiting w i t h  h i m  and his wife i t  was then tha t  I told h i m  A 
that  I would be leaving the Agency and he expressed great surprise and 

said that he'was l i t e r a l l y  astonished a t  this, t h a t  he thought t h i n g s  

had been going very well a t  the Agency, that  the coordination was goingTp., 
' i  L, 2 &.d LAP'. 

well, and the Bureau o f  Budget had been &iqd-&Q Y 
P 

$"" - 
A 
Now, this could have been genuine, 

way t h i n g s  were moving and so forth aiid was, therefore hardput  t o  ex- 

plain why i t  was that  I was leaving. 

i t  could have been politenesstb 

I don't know what i t  was, i l  . .  
taneous. 6 , I  

QLberSt.*.--- 
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8: Lbqa=se. 

sa t i s fac t i on  on the pa r t  o f  the White House i s  the est imat ive 

proceqs. 

H: I bel ieve so. 

Another area which has been al leged t o  invo lve  d is-  

.' x c  t ' l r S i *  I th ink  you discussed t h a t  thoroughly tbaL.&@. LN! 

:LA+=< 

SECOND TAPE -- SIDE - 1 .I.. 

B: I gather t h a t  i n  the est imat ing f i e l d ,  although t h i s  again was al leged 

c. -4 +14.!.*F' 
t o  have been a source o f  d i ssa t i s fac t i on  on the pa r t  o f  the White 

House generally, you d i d  have ra ther  spec i f i c  ind ica t ions  o f  

garrt: . I t h ink  you received a l e t t e r  from Kissinger saying t h i s  new 

format *what we needed. 
c., 4 - m  

H: I t h ink  t h a t ' s  r i g h t .  A t  l eas t  that's- my' recol lect ion.  I n  the  beginning, 

1 th ink  t h a t  Kissinger found t h a t  some o f  the estimates were too  general, 

t h a t  they d i d  no t  have i n  them s u f f i c i e n t  supporting mater ia l  t o  con- 

vince the  reader t h a t  the conclusions were the proper conclusions t o  

draw. 

gradual ly developed the idea tha t  the most useful k ind  of  an estimate, 

p a r t i c u l a r l y  having t o  do w i t h  the  Soviet m i l i t a r y  s t rength and such 

So over a per iod o f  the t ime o f  the f i r s t  Nixon Administration, he 

matters, was t o  pu t  a great deal o f  data and f ind ings i n t o  the estimate 

so t h a t  a .reader who d i d n ' t  l i k e  the  conclusions had enough supporting 

mater ia l  there t o  come t o  a conclusion o f  h i s  own. 

way the estimate was changed dur ing h i s  tenure i n  the  White House. 

And once i t  was changed i n  tha t  fashion, I t h ink  he was qu i te  s a t i s f i e d  

And tha t  was the 

. 

w i t h  it. So a f te r  a l l ,  what we were doing here was going through an 
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evol u ionary process o f  at tempting t ada t the important estimates 

on the Soviet Union and Soviet military strength t o  an Administration 

t h a t  simply wanted a different product than  had been given t o  the 

t h a t  

of a 

Administration.prior t o  t h a t .  And i t  d i d  s t r ike me a t  the time 

t o  have happened because i t  took us o u t  

of gotten into as t o  the format of these e s t  mold t h a t  mates 

and  broken some new ground. I don't know how they are done today, b u t  

a t  least  t h a t  was quite a change and I t h i n k  i t  was an interesti,ngIlone. 

As far  as criticisms of the Agency was concerned, I am sure that Presi- . '  

dent Nixon was cr i t ical  o f  various things and continued cr i t ical  long 

af te r  he l e f t  office, so t h a t  I don't think,these were t h i n g s  t h a t  he 
& necessarily changed his mind about F u  know, he d i d  blow on the 

Sihanoukville a f f a i r ,  and thene wash0 question about i t  t h a t  there was 

a mistake i n  the matrix t h a t  they used t o  make judgements 

about  wha t  materiel was going into Sihanoukville. I have no doubt that 

there were other mistakes made d u r i n g  this  period. B u t  as Kissinger 

observed many years la te r ,  intelligence operations and estimates and 

* 

analysis are done by human beings and there i s  no guarantee that just 

because a fellow i s  suddenly made i n t o  an intelligence officer he's gonna 

become * infall ible.  So, I t h i n k  that  every 

President will have something to  cr i t ic ize  i n  his intelligence organiza- 

tion and intelligence operations because sune things are bound t o  go 

wrong and somebody's bound to  make a mistake. 

6: Sihanoukville was a mistake, a mistaken judgement# w / F h e r e  is  no 

.-/**'-& Nixon, Kissinger, or somebody else i n  ks #executive) decided 
c q L r .  ,T l . LA . . y  

!\ 

, 



t h a t  other estimates or conclusions of the Agency were mistaken, 

when i n  fact they weren't mistaken. 

You know I t h i n k  t h a t  there i s  a point t h a t  should n o t  be overlooked. 

Is t h a t  right? 

H: 

And t h a t  was t h a t  du r ing  the Vietnamese War, particularly d u r i n g  the 

l a s t  couple o f  years of the Johnson Administration and most o f  the 
L (! 1 .-,.La %. d Nixon, or 'his f i r s t  Administration, the Agency was constantly i n  a 
n t 

position of b r i n g i n g  i n  findings and doing  analyses which the 

Administration d i d n ' t  like, bamh 9 t was an unpopular war w i t h  the .e-=- 5 

pub1 ic ,  and ,  therefore, bo th  those Administrations f e l t  rather be- .. 1,s: 

leaguered, and therefore when anybody in the Government came up with 

a paper or an  estimate or whatever the case m i g h t  be which indicated 

' 

- - .  ._ . -  t h a t  the- wa1 _w_as .not--go_ing- , - w i t  was not achieving the objectives 

which they had i n . m i n d ,  or whatever the case may have been, that  this 

caused rancor and I t h i n k  probably an a t t i tude which was best described 

by Secretary of Defense Lai rd  one day when he said t o  me, "Which side 

are you fellows on?" -- meaning t h a t  we were really almost undercutting 

the war effort  by bringing out  analyses and estimates of the k i n d  that  

we were. 

because of  this  Vietnamese fac tor  and i t  turns out ,  I t h i n k ,  t h a t  the 

So the Agency was not a popular instrument dur ing  this period 

Agency was probably more r igh t  than wrong i n  i ts estimates on Vietnam 

and more r i g h t  than anybody else i n  either Administration. 

record, objectively, i s  a good one. B u t  i t  certainly &not help 

So that the 

ones popularity w i t h  ei ther President Johnson or President Nixon. I 

t h i n k  President Johnson took these criticisms or negative analyses, 

~ & , , . & m & t h a n  A Nixon d id .  B u t  then 
h.$?L4 

Nixon had a background of complaining t h a t  estimates on Soviet strength 
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a 

over a period of years by the Agency had been wrong. Well, I mean 

these we E sort  of f l a t  and sort  of broad brush statements t h a t  were 

very hard t o  plrcounter because none of those estimates actually came 

down on one single figure or one single element of truth t h a t  -#, w i t h  

ranges a n d . + h  p- they m i g h t  do t h i s i t h e y  m i g h t  do that ,  

I 

?'i 

i 
* , so t h a t  ever since the so-called '!Miss.iJ.e-=-- , + I + #  . 

I 

Gap controversy" of the 60s campaign which Nixon f e l t  contributed t o  his 
) i 

defeat by Kennedy, the CIA was not a good number i n  his book,md heFwas -+*F. 0 - 4 -  aon 

distrustful of it. And he was made additionally distrustful by comments I .c ,A*. 

t h a t  he used t o  hear, particularly, I t h i n k ,  i n  the days of Alien Dulles 

and John McCone, t h a t  the Directors o f  the Agency had gotten i n t o  the 
..- - - - policy business and I believe Kissinger mentions this ,in one of his 

books, i n  a rather quieting way, t h a t  i t  was Nixon's intention originally, 

according t o  Kissinger who t o i d  me this, t h a t  the Director o f  the  Agency 

was t o  do briefings on intelligence matters i n  NSC meetings and then he 

was t o  leave the meeting when they go t  down t o  the policy discussion. 

This is  what I was told was t o  happen by Kissinger b u t  oddly enough i t  

never transpired; I never walked out of  one single meeting i n  the whole 

Nixon Administration. 

d i d n ' t  go through w i t h  i t ,  o r  whether he t h o u g h t  i t  would be embarrassing, C .  - So exactly why this was not enforced or  why Nixon 

&LA w.' 
or what ,  I d o n ' t  know, b u t  I was certainly on notice t h a t  he was & 
c 

cy'&-- 
&i&Um pol icy contributions from me and my'own concept of the 

job.  as Director of Central Intel1 igence was t o  stay out of policy, because 

once you get involved i n  that, i t  seems to 'me that you contaminate the 

product o f  your Agency, 'In other words, I d i d  not agree with John McCone 

and his view on how you go about this. B u t ,  in afly event, t ha t  was my 
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view, 

anymore, b u t  I t r ied t o  conduct myself as an intelligence officer and 

n o t  a policy maker. 

I d o n ' t  know whether anybody pays any attention t o  these matters 

6: I t  seems t o  me, I go t  the impression t h a t  your relations w i t h  Nixon, 

personally, or the President personally, and w i t h  the White House, jt 

S v - -  P we re better an d+w- 

more effective towards the end of the f i rs t  Nixon Administration t h a n  
they certainly were a t  the beginning. ..-a . . 5 . r ~ ? q n l f l  

H: I t h i n k  tha t ' s  true. Tha t  was my impression also: 

B: Which was one of the t h i n g s  t h a t  is  puzzl ing and confusing abou t  Nixon's 

decision t o  include you as a professional, you were a professional 'intel- -. . . . 

...* ... .... -.. . -- , . .. ._ . .. . .  ',.... m k n c e  officer,  i n  his hbijsecleanin$in his ' -effor t j  'to 3@$te  .personar ' +---::.'.' ';;,.I 

H: 

B: 

control over the Government as a whole. And i t  brings,back the question 

of w h a t  would be an impossible assignnknt,i w h a t  was really going on i n  

Nixon's mind when he t . Now i t  i s  con- 

ceivable t h a t  people had given h i m  the impression t h a t  the management 

of the Community could be improved, that  the estimating process could be 

-,,L h tiA.k% 6 4  - C,'? 'i,-.c: i :.Ll.t. 
'1: 

+ -  l,x..e*.d-i. f l  I, 2.c r. L.&;L'( L,r ; p.? 
I 

improved, t h a t  he really believed this b u t  as you have sa id  there i s  no 

evidence of this ,iR4tc.ier - . I t  is  a ' fac t  t h a t  

he distrusted the Agency b u t  a t  the time that 

he originally appointed you, R s  distrust  y30 presumably therefore i n -  

creased d u r i n g  the four years o f  his Administration. 

ze,l, ChL-LC. I 
Is t h a t  a legi t i -  

mate conclusion? 

I'm sorry. I ' d  like you to  restate that  because I'm not  sure 
e 

Well, the question i s  i f  , recognizing t h a t  Nixon had held the Agency 

responsible for the Missile Gap- which he f e l t  contributed o r "  
,) 

at' 

..' \ 

.. . 
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l e d  t o  h i s  defeat, i n t o  o f f i c e  w i th  a pre jud ice against 

the Agency and. i t s  professional s ta f f ,  why a t  t h a t  po in t  d i d  he appoint 

a 

H: W e l l ,  i t  may be, then, t ha t  he ra ther  thought as had other  Presidents 

had thought before him, such as Kennedy, t h a t  i t  was desirable t o  keep 

the head o f  the FBI and the head o f  the CIA, a t  l e a s t  f o r  a per iod o f  

time, so t ha t  those jobs i n  the p u b l i c ' s  mind remained a p o l i t i c a l .  

o ther  words, out  o f  p o l i t i c s .  And tha t  t h i s  may have been one o f  the 

cont r ibu t ing  fac to rs  t o  keep me on as a professional intel1igencesofficer:D *' 

I ,  sa---' 
in te l l i gence  o f f i c e r  as head o f  the Agency? 

I n  

I th ink  you probably have t o  ask- Nixon himsel f  about t h a t  one. * 

d ied before the Nixon Administration, so he had an opportuni ty t o  

ac tua l l y  appoint another D i  rec'tor o f  the FBI, C- , 'n 

ik&+-.LdsrtLMtnow+* ...rea- * , b o t a t * * A & r n e  - 
-g.,&bat\I i ns is ted  t h a t  Erhlichman arranqe w i th  Nixon so t h a t  

/ - 
I could f i n d  ou t  from &personally i f  he'wanted those three studies 

from the Agency about the demise o f  Diem, the 

and I fo rgo t  what the t h i r d  was, maybe i t  was Lumumba, I don ' t  know. 

a f f a i r ,  

But, i n  any event, you w i l l  r e c a l l  Erhlichman came ou t  t o  see me and 

he wanted these, t h i s  mater ia l  f o r  the e lec t ion  campaign and so f o r t h  

and I i n s i s t e d  t o  him t h a t  I wanted t o  please Nixon and I put i t  t o  

him t h i s  way, and I said do you want these, I mean I want t o  be sure t h a t  

he personal ly wants them because ~BP o ther  

Presidents watching him, i f  you want t o  put i t  t h a t  way, the only  person 
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that  had a r i g h t  to  ask for any material l ike this was the President 

himself. Mow whether his assistants so that  

what he asked for  and then when he assured me t h a t  he 

would n o t  use them for  political purposes o r  to embarrass the Agency 

or anything e l se ,  I had no alternative except t o  send them over. Be- 

fore we g o t  i n t o  that ,  on this  particular day i n  the meeting i n  the 

oval office,  Erhlichman was, there, Nixon and myself, Nixon asked me 

i f  I had any ideas of how he could get rid of J. Edgdr Hoover. 

$ 

He I 

wanted h i m ,  he wanted his resignation. 

on this  and trying t o  f i n d  some mans of doing i t  without caus.ing a l o t  

And that  $hey had been workilngls I k ! b i m a x . i u n .  I 

o f  polit ical  upheaval and so for th ,  and Erhlichrnan got into the conversa- 

tion and said well he d i d n ’ t  offer any new ideas 

Government done that and so on, so t h a t  nothing could have been clearer 

that  he wanted h i m  out too. 

In a curious way many of your friends took the fact  that  Nixon decided B: 

t o  relieve you, a t  the beginning of his Administration, as a refutation 

o f  the statements i n  the Rockefeller Committee Report that  you have t o  

have somebody i n  the office of DCI who had an independent power base,, 

-fw 1 -----y+m i j  

yLL-l+- w w u -  ed, 

b z n d e n c e  manifestec i self  i n  a number , 

of ways, by maintaining estimates fo r  *example/- 

1 

+--? 
n 

d - .  

mmm+yw were not wholly acceptable t o  the Administration, also by 

this incident which  you just described refusing t o  hand over . I 

sensit ive material t o  

stand i t ,  Nixon liked to  operate. 

subordinates, which i s  the way, as I under- 
I 

You had t o  deal w i t h  his immediate 
I 
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n ci 

rather small coterie of subgrdinates. The Agency didn't do th i s ,  
e manifest a comnendable ar6 A 

level of independence. 

H: Well, as you probably are pe rsonally aware, there was n o t h i n g  abou t  

the Rockefeller Commission Report which I resented as much as t h a t  

particular assertion i n  there t h a t  I lacked windependence and lacked 

the courage t o  stand up  t o  the President. In other words, I was'trying 

t o  ho ld  on t o  my J o b ,  because there were various inferences to  t h a t  . -  . .  1 

because not  only of estimates b u t  of analyses, and repurts, 

and then there were a few things about the assassination papers and so 

forth,  where I t h i n k  i t  i s  abundantly clear t h a t  I stood up t o  the 
. . . i . . . . .  ... . . .  . . I . .  1 . . ( .  ., . . . .  

President and the White House and t h a t  i t  should  be clear t h a t  I f e l t  . -  

one could reasonably do so. 

the way the Government was organized, i t  was quite clear i n  the law that 

the President or the National Security Council simply fough t  w i t h  the 

Central Intelligence Agency. Consequently, he was the one man i n  town 

who had the statutory author i ty  to  ask of me anything he wanted. I 

can ' t  imagine t h a t  one would interpret the National Security Act of 

1947 as denying the President the r i g h t  t o  have access t o  anything i n  

the C I A  that he wanted. So,  a t  least  that was always my interpretation 

when he asked for these papers, af ter  a l l  

' 

of i t .  The Congress didn' t  have the r igh t  t o  these t h i n g s  b u t  he had 

a r i g h t  t o  them, under the t e r n  o f  the statute. 

issue o f  resignation, or t o  storm around over this particular matter 

didn't seem to  me made any sense, particularly when he personally assured 

me t h a t  he just wanted i t  for his own information and,  so t h a t  he 

could protect the Agency d u r i n g  the campaign i f  anybody a#a&ed us o f  

So, to  have made an 

' I  d 
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being invo lved i n  these things. 

said, a f t e r  a l l  you have t o  accept the President 's word f o r  t h i s .  

That was what he t o l d  me. And, I 

B: The question then o f  Watergate and whether o r  n o t  the President 

resented the r o l e  which A- personally played i n  some o f  the alleged, on 

some o f  the Watergate coverup, have you any, have you any new impres- 

s ion  o f  what the react ion o f  the President was? Surely, he must have 

seemed thoroughly aware o f  pressures t h a t  p e r f e c t l y  obviously were 

pushing i n  the d i r e c t i o n  o f  invo lv ing  the  Agency i n  various aspects of 

the Matergate coverup, payment t o  people i n  j a i l ,  - the  use. o f  the 
I 

Agency's a c t i v i t i e s  i n  Mexico as a way o f  - W y  &ves t i  ga- 
h 

t i o n  which a&&Lw& which might lead t o  a0 

associated w i th  Nixon, a l l  those things c e r t a i n l y  came out  i n  pub l i c  

view and how d i d  you feel about i t  a t  the t i m e  t h a t  they were going on? 

H: Well, I t h ink  the best example t o  take - i s  t h a t  o f  the emphasis t o  get  

b a i l  money t o  the Watergate burglars.  You w i l l  r e c a l l  t h a t  t h i s  was done 

by John Dean c a l l i n g  down Dick Walters on three d i f f e r e n t  occasions t o  

press t h i s  matter w i t h  him. 

f i r s t  time, I sat  down w i th  Walters and then I s a t  down w i t h  him regu la r l y  

i n  the next few days' wh i le  these meetings were going on we had several 

&d I made i t  abundantly c lea r  t o  ta lks .  AP i t  was on these occasions 

him t h a t  I would no t  stand f o r  our  funds being used f o r  any purpose l i k e  

t h i s ,  and t h a t  he was t o  stand absolute ly  f i rm, and t h a t  i f  the going got 

And when he came back from the meeting the 

/ b / 

too tough t h a t  he could t e l l  John Dean t h a t  we were obl igated t o  only use 

money from special  funds f o r  any purpose outside o f  the normal ones,. t ha t  

we had t o  repor t  t o  both the Senate and the Congress and t h a t  I intended 

t o  abide by th i s ,  i f  I was ordered, i n  fac t ,  t o  come up w i th  any money, 
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which,obviously I wasn't g o i n g  t o  be. And I was rather intrigued, 

therefore, when I came back i n  ' 7 3  from Tehran to  be testifying in 

connection w i t h  some of these Watergate matters t o  be told by t h e  

I!:  f 

Senate Armed Services Committee Staff t h a t  Walters had been taking 

credi t  for  having stood u p  to  the White House i n  these matters, where- 

as he hadn't been having any position of  Walter's own a t  a l l ,  he was 

making the Agency's position which I was dictating t o  h i m ,  and this 

was what he was going  t o  do. So why i t  was t h a t  he seemed t o  feel 

that  he wanted t o  p u t  on the red badge of courage when my back was turned 
t 

i s  net entirely clear to me. 

President gave h i m  a medal for standing up t o  the White House. 

The President gave h i m  a medal? 

The Distinguished Intelligence Medal for having been so firm w i t h  the 

White House over Watergate. 

It!s always occurred t o  me why i t  was the 

B: 

H: 

That's w h a t  they say. 

B:  ' . This I d i d n ' t  know. 

H: Well, t h i s  i s  what I was told. In any event, as for the other aspects 

I '  

o f  i t ,  the famous June 23rd meeting and so on, the problem which ex- 

isted a t  the time, o f  that meeting, was that no information w i t h i n  the 

public domain as t o  exactly w h a t  had happened i n  Watergate except f o r  

the burglary itse1.f. And the idea t h a t  money was be ing  laundered i n  

Mexico had never been mentioned t o  me, I never heard of money being 

laundered i.n Mexico. That came somewhat la te r ,  so that  when the Presi- 

dent sent Haldeman t o  mention tha t  sonething might  affect  our on-going 

operations i n  Mexico, I d i d n ' t  know what he was talking about. B u t  i t  

seemed t o  me only prudent to  see i f  I could find out  what he was talking 

abou t  o r  f i n d  out what was going on ik ; otherwise, 
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I might have my t a i l  over the bag for i t . .  So, i t  was f o r  t h i s  reason., 

the i ns t ruc t i ons  I gave t o  Walters was an order t o  go down t o  the 

D i roc tor  o f  the FBI, he was t o  slay very c a r e f u l l y  on the basis t h a t  

we had t h i s  d e f i n i t i o n  o f  ro les,  s o r t  o f  de l im i ta t i on  agreement be- 

tween the t w o  Agencies, we intended t o  s t i c k  by it, t h a t  I d i d n ' t  

know what was behind a l l  t h i s ,  b u t  t h a t  was our pos i t i on  and so on. 

Walters came down t o  my car  w i th  me.and we ta lked  there on the sidewalk 

on West Executive Avenue. So he was very c lea r  how f a r  he could goyi.alh 

I which was nowhere, and i f  i t  involved anything pecul iar ,  he iwaseto come 

back and f i n d  out i f  some o f  our-operations were being worried.about. 

I th ink  Walters. rea l i zed  too a t  the time t h a t  h i s  t i c k e t  was being punched, 

a f t e r  

three months and they were r e a l l y  checking out t o  f i n d  out  how loya l  he+- 

was going t o  be, there wasn't any doubt and t h a t  was why he was picked 

ly, having a Deputy Di rector  only#, two o r  1- 

t o  t a l k  t o  John Dean and so on. 

B: Wel l ,  then, by impl icat ion,  a t  l e a s t  w, a consensus o f  persons i n  

the White House &d& had perhaps developed, o r  I should th ink  d e f i n i t e l y  

developed, t h a t  you were not  t o t a l l y  l oya l  i n  the sense o f  being t o t a l l y  

subordinated t o  Nixon. 

H: I t h ink  t h a t ' s  f a i r .  Otherwise, I would have been picked for the 

, and t h i s  obviously could-have been a f a c t o r  

chore myself. 

B: Well, I suppose so 

i n  Nixon's dec is ion t o  include you i n  h i s  housecleaning operation. I 

t h ink  t h a t  there i s  no lega l  reason, there i s  no l ega l  reason, no 

p rac t i ca l  reason, why the President o f  the United States can ' t  run . 
secret  operations himself. I have i n  mind the Howard Hunt approach t o  
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the Agency and his request for support for some k i n d  of clandestine 

paraphenal i a  and your decision 

have i t ,  was something t h a t  you 

or off ic ia l ly ,  try to oppose. 
P t  

f this was wha t  the President wanted, t o  

really, would no t  ei ther le3ally 

H:  That was my position, bu44tiwas w W a  great deal o f  criticism ob- 

viously of me and the Agency t h a t  we should have acquiesced to  any o f  

these requests t h a t  were made by the White House. B u t  even i n  retro- 
9 spect I say t o  myself, what basis d id  we have for  refusing the request, 

1 think t h a t  -k hindsight, i f  something like that ever came up again, 

probably the wise t h i n g  for any Director t o  do would be t o  p u t  on his 

hat and go down and have a private talk w i t h  the President and f i n d  o u t  

what was b k i n d  something l i k e ‘  th is .  

B:  6 u t  th is  was not easy t o  do. 

H: Well, th is  was+ ( a )  not  easy to  do b u t  ( b )  considering the f a c t  t h a t  

Nixon was ‘after us, consistentlyanyway, t o  perform about this,  that ,  and 

the other t h i n g ,  t h a t  i t  d i d n ’ t  seem to be particularly sensible t o ,  you 

know, blow up some$ing t h a t  there was no reason t o  blow i t  up. In other 

words, blow i t  up i n t o  such a th ing  t h a t  I had asked for  a private audience t 

to  s i t  down and talk t o  h i m  about it .  You remember on one of those tapes, 

there was a segment from Nixon that  we’ve done a lot  . to  help Helms and 

so forth? 

B: Yes. 

H: Well, you know what that  turned out to  be, and then he la te r  admitted that 

a l l  t h a t  was was my request for some help from the Justice Department w i t h  
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the Marchett i  case. 

B: 

H: No, i t  was on one o f  those tapes. 

B:  I t  wasn’t, no, no, I understand. The statement t h a t  he was ge t t ing  

I n  what context d i d  he mabd tha t  statement, regarding h i s  book? 

used t o  0 %  

H: I don ’ t  t h i n k  i t  was i n  one ofahis books, I th ink  i t  was i n  an 

i n t e r v i  ew t h a t  he 

, , I  . . B :  The fac t  i s  Marchetti . Yes, .well;-:.good. 

--- - . I On t h i s  issue o f  prov id ing funds t o  b a i l  t he  Watergate accomplices out, 
.. . I bel ieve t h a t  7 ’ , former Presidents, Johnson, f o r  example, 

had asked you t o  commit Agency funds f o r  purposes which were no t  im- 

mediately germane t o  the Agency’s (-f+mchise) and t h a t  you had ins i s ted  

t h a t  you advise the appropriate Congressional Committee 
f .- 

o f  t h i s  fact .  

H: That ’s r i g h t .  I n  o ther  words, John, t h i s  was no t  the  f i r s t  time, cer-  

t a i n l y ,  t h a t  I had been approached f o r  the use o f  special  funds f o r  pur- 

poses o ther  than 1La pure ly  i n te l l i gence  purposes. There was t h i s  t i m e  

when Johnson wanted some money t o  help pay f o r  an unexpected and very 

expensive t r i p  t o  the  Far East, t h a t  was the  one I fought w i t h  him about. 

And Marvin Watson t r i e d  t o  get me t o  OK the money and I t o l d  him that  I 

wasn’t going t o  OK the money because I had been l e d  t o  understand line was 

the Chairman o f  the House Appropriations Corni t tee and the Chairman o f  

& c,””ce*L 
1 

the Senate Appropriations Committee, and t h a t  i f  I need come t o  any- . 

t h i n g  t h a t  was outside of the normal purposes o f  the Agency, t h a t  I 

would repor t  t o  them. And I fought wi th Watson about t h i s  and f i n a l l y  

I sa id  t o  him, “Look, you j u s t  t e l l  President Johnson tha t  y e d l 1  
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then I ’ m  goma go down and ask him f i t ’ s  OK.’’ And Johnson f i n a l l y  

acquiesced. 

i t  t o  him without my t e l l i n g *  and 1 d id  go t a l k  t o  both those 
/$ 

and they d i d n ’ t  l i k e  i t  but they said, we l l  I 

n( 
I n  o ther  words, he wasn’t, he cou ldn ’ t  get  me t o  give 

L ? ? c  

guess we ’ l l  have t o  do i t  i f  the President wants the money. And then 

there was another occasion, i t  was John Scal i ,  having been made Ambas- 

sador t o  the United Nations, ca l l ed  me over t o  h i s  o f f i c e  before he I -  1 

11, .. I.. 

4 1  

lwent up t o  New York, and t o  put t h i s  i n  conversation,of very brief..fom,,, ,,dw 

t o l d  me t h a t  he had a l o t  o f  alimony t o  pay t o  h i s  w i f e  whom he had 

j u s t  divorced, t h a t  t h i s  job i n  New York was going t o  be expensive, 

there was a l o t  o f  expensive entertainment tha t  had t o  be done and he 

wondered if the Agency would put up the money f o r  h i s  enter ta in ing,  t h i s  

on the grounds t h a t  I might be ab le  t o  e x p l o i t  some o f  these connections. 

8: No harm t ry ing .  

H: Well, I turned t h a t  down, obviously. And there were others through the 

years, I don’ t  r e c a l l  r i g h t  now what some o f  them were, but, i n  other 

words, demands on the special funds o f  C I A  were something tha t  happened 

f requent ly  enough so t ha t  you cou ldn ’ t  surpr ise me a l l  t h a t  much, t h a t  

we were being asked fo r ,  and I had, i n  o ther  words, my mind f a i r l y  wel l  

se t  on how I dea l t  w i t h  matters o f  t h i s  kind. 

B: As f a r  as Hunt was concerned, it, I presume, never became apparent t o  

you personal ly t h a t  a break i n  o f  the p s y c h i a t r i s t  o f f i c e  was contem- 

plated, as f a r  as you knew? 

I knew nothing about Hunt’s operation. 

word o r  sy l l ab le  about what he was up to, or what.he.was planned t o  do. 

H: I was never given one s ing le  
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I , 

.'I- 

B: The question o f  dissatisfaction)of w h a t  was going  on in the President's 

mind,was seldom communicated, I gather, vis-a-vis, face to  face, w i t h  

the people t h a t  he had deemed were disappointing, as I remember, i n  

the Government, b u t  he dealt through t- s. As 

f a r  as  you're concerned t h a t  would mean Kissingerd Haig, m, 

&& <..rip 
'A - 

H: 

B: 

H: 

That's r i g h t ,  w i t h  those two. 

And Erhl i chman and Hal deman sort of represented Presi denti a1 presence. 

On rare occasions, they'd get i n  touch w i t h  me about some particular 

t h i n g  t h a t  he wanted. 

B: B u t  d i d  ei ther of them, o r  any of  their entourage, ever come t o  you to  

indicate t h a t  the President wasn't happy w i t h  what  was going,on? 

H: No. 

B: I n  the field?? . 
H: No. 

B: 

H: That's r ight.  

B:  

They were just  i n  the background. 

Of course t o ,  back t o  your original appointment, i t  changed from a very 

healthy and informal effective relationship that you had established 

w i t h  the White House and w i t h  President Johnson, i t  changed from t h a t  

t o  the statement t h a t  you were t o  only remain for  the purpose o f  pro- 

viding the briefing and then leave and n o t  participate, Jk must have 

been a rather unpl4ant and I must say somewhat shattering experience. 

Well, I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  I w a n t  t o  characterize i t  quite as  radically 

as tha t .  I recognized t h a t  w i t h  President Nixon I was gonna be g0in.g 

into an entirely different situation. The few t h i n g s  t h a t  came up 

i n  th is  form me, I must say, disheartening. B u t ,  I thought  t o  myself, 

/ 

H: 

w 
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well,. we'll give i t  a t ry ,  and i f  i t  doesn't work, obviously, t h e n  I 

can go off  and do something else. B u t  since the length of time between 

the time Kissinger t o l d  me this and the time of the t h i n g  which theo- 

retically had gone into effect i n  the f i r s t  half o f  the Security 

Council meeting was certainly no more t h a n  about a week or ten'days 

and  then i t  was quite clear t o  me t h a t  wasn't  the way i t  was going t o  

be anyway. 

B: I t  seems,.to go back for a moment t o  the statement which you made much:: 

ear l ie r  i n  the discussion, t o  the effect that  the President's deoi:s$onan- 

So I stopped worrying about i t .  

no t  t o  keep you on u n t i l  your 60th bir thday,  b u t  t o  replace you sooner, 

his desire to have a17 his senior 

appointments announced simultaneously? 

H: Yes. Everybody was sworn i n  on the same day, a t  the same time. r r ,  -; 

B: Including the FBI? I * :  

I 
s 

I H: No, t h a t  was i n ,  the FBI t h i n g ,  i t  seem t o  me, came about as a result 

o f  Hoover's death. 
I 

B :  Did he die a f te r  the ? 

H: No, I t h i n k  he died i n  the 

B: Well then Gray was already i n  office. 

H: Yes. 

B: B u t  he had t o  be reappointed, or d id  he? Well, maybe not. 

H: You see, Gray never cpt t o  the Congress. 

B: Oh, that ' s  r i g h t .  Yes. B u t ,  i t  was this desire for  a new look, I 

know, on the part o f  his Administration t h a t  determined the t i m i n g  on 

this? 

H: Yeah. T h a t ' s  correct. 
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B: Dick, w h a t ,  t o  what extent do you feel t h a t  you were identified in 
~ e - . :  2 8 b;.i. @*li?p& t 6 

Nixon's mind, i r  how 

wu4.E- a liberal bunch of. people on the whole, t h a t  

went t o  cocktail parties and disparaged t h e  basic philosophy t h a t  
Tq b-sJ+u& At. t z d  Lcrul. - 

the President f e l t  he repre:ented, anti  -Ivy 
1 -d A ?  League att i tude A nrt, b. Do you feel t h a t  t h a t  was a 

factor i n  your rel'ations w i t h  him? 

H :  Well, I think undoubtedly, a t  the, certainly a t  the outset, because.he1" 

. did have this  feeling about Gebrgetown people, i n  quotes, and I d o n ' t  I . ' '  

think t h a t  even Walters e- ever succeeded i n  

convincing h i m  there wasn't something t o  i t .  And, therefore, he was 

. .  

distrustful of those Georgetown people. Why he p u t  me i n  this cate- 

gory particularly I don't know because he d i d n ' t  know very much a b o u t  

me and I d o n ' t  t h i n k  he did. I told you ear l ier  maem+ 

when push came t o  shove a t  the very end he didn't know anything about 

my career a t  a l l .  

Did you deal with him much when he was the Vice President? 8: 

H: Well, I dea l t  w i t h  him on two o r  three occasions, t h a t  was a l l .  I 

- 

went down to  brief h im on a trip he was g o i n g  t o  make t o  Hungary and 

so forth, and this would not  have been something t h a t  would have had 

a great deal of impact on him, I d o n ' t  t h i n k .  I certainly d i d  not  

know him well and he may have forgotten these t h i n g s .  You know, l i f e  

is  like t h a t ,  t h a t  you d o n ' t  think about the John Smiths' background 

and history and p u t  i t  a l l  together i n  your mind until something causes 
I 

you t o  p u t  i t  together i n  your mind. In other words, you go t  this 

impression and no doubt you should have t h a t  impression, So, I d o n ' t  
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p u t  a' great deal o f  stock i n  th i s ;  I've jus t  been attempting t o  say 

t h a t  Nixon was really n o t  up  on his lesson very well about me and the 

Agency. 

B: What I keep coming back to here i n  my mind i s  how significant a factor 
. .  . .  W '  

i n  Nixon's a t t i t u d e  towards the Agency) 
-+* eFe 

his a t t r i b u t i o n  o f  the alleged missile c r i s i s  t o  CIA 

&$lL& C \ A  -c..Lt. &ad always harbored a feeling t h a t  the C I A  
3 was staffed w i t h  ec$rr 2.Ia-k # 4 A - U  

. .  
H:  Well, I 'm inclined to  t h i n k  t h a t  you're correct about t h a t  tbecacts"eFone'~~n~ L 

of the things t h a t  I noted about-  Nixon was, that once he had an idea 

i n  his head, i t  was almost impossible to  get i t  out. 

would say t o  me t h a t  I know abou t  your relationships w i t h  Hoover and 

so for th .  In other words, he was talking about the relationship be-?*- 

tween the FBI and the CIA back' i n  the '60s when he was Vice President. 

They'd changed dramatically by the end of the '60s and the '70s. 

Hoover and I d i d n ' t  have any great affection for  each other, b u t  the 

collaboration between the two organizat ions on a day-today basis had 

For example, he 

Maybe 
I 

I 
I 

changed dramatically. B u t  Nixon was totally unaware of this and 

wou ldn ' t  believe i t  i f  you told him. So, I have no doubt t h a t  you are 

correct i n  this, t h a t  he brought these impressions along with h i m  and 
I 
I I they never d i d  change very much, i f  they changed a t  a l l .  
i 

B: Stewart Alsop always f e l t  t h a t  there was a certain basic insecurity 

in Nixon's makeup which made him shy away, and rather apprehensive 

in .a way about people like Allen Dulles, and yourself and others, whom 

he f e l t  sort  of awkward'with. 

Nixon just p l a i n  d i d n ' t  l ike being w i t h  people on a one-on-one basis 

a n d  tha t ' s  a l l  there i s  t o  i t .  I think i t  was an insecurity, i t  was 

I 
H: 
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the fac t  t h a t  he was f a i r l y  gauche i n  h i s  personal dealings w i th  

people. And as recent ly  as l a s t  week, I was t a l k i n g  w i t h  

o f  the Times who had been up t o  in te rv iew Nixon about 

h i s  t r i p  t o  China. He said, you know, fo r  me a young man, i t  was j u s t  

fasc ina t ing  t o  meet t h a t  man because I had heard a l l  these th ings 

about him and so fo r th ,  he was very pleasant, he was goad i n  the i n t e r -  

view, and very cooperative, he said, bu t  the  personal re la t i onsh ip  

wi th me 

over he seemed t o  me t o  be the most uncomfortable'man t h a t  I have 

ever seen. Wel l ,  I mean, here i t  i s ,  he 's  out o f  o f f i c e ,  he i s n ' t  

even President anymore and he s t i l l  has t h i s  t e r r i b l e  t ime r e l a t i n g  t o  

and before the t r i p  around the house was _ _ _  - 
l 

people as human beings. 

Let me ask you what's probably a s i l l y  question but, suppose Nixon had 

decided t o  keep you on, and because a t  t h a t  po in t  these at tacks on the  

Agency had escalated as they did, would you say tha t  i n  most respects 

you were b e t t e r  o f f  leav ing the Agency a t  the t i m e  t h a t  you d id?  

W e l l ,  I t h ink  I must say I rea l i ze  tha t  if a record were made o f  the 

B: 

H: 

people of the Agency, t ha t  i t  might as wel l  be a candid record because 

o f  these f l o a t i n g  around. I have f e l t  consistent ly,  and I 

don ' t  t h ink  I exaggerate, t ha t  i f  the Congress had taken on these 

inves t iga t ions  i n  the form they d i d  and I had s t i l l  been Director, t ha t  

I would have fought them t o  the death about tu rn ing  a l l  those papers down 

there, and I would have t r i e d  t o  get  Nixon o r  Ford o r  whoever i t  was t o  

back me up i n  th i s .  But, I can ' t  be l ieve that I would have sa t  there 

and turned over bales and bales o f  SECRET repor ts  t o  those Senate Com- 

mi t tees wi thout  a f i g h t .  And, because t o  t h i s  day, I regard those hear- 
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(,ww- !T 
ings as of w h a t  we'd a l l  been led to believe, those 

o f  us who a t  least  grew up before 1930, a b o u t  espionage, counter- 

espionage, the sanctity of your f i les ,  and the custom t o  keep them i n  

and so forth which I didn't think I, he should have,.I would go t o  

the President about it. Now i t  was quite clear t h a t  the Attorney General 

was.'not on the National Security Council and therefore i t  would seem to 

me t h a t  any instructions t o  the Agency, which are not perfectly routine 

tact ,  the f a c t  t h a t  there was a l o t  of nastiness t h a t  was gonna have 

t o  go on,  and this was not going t o  be revealed t o  the p u b l i c  for a 

whole lo t  of perfectly sensible, public policy reasons, therefore, 

when a1 1 this was regurgitated and shipped up t o  Capitol Hill , I, and 

I t h i n k  others, particularly I speak for wse l f ,  regarded this as an - r r j h  I 

M C s f  b&+# t rust .  - I  

, %  B: As I remember it, one o f  your successors, Bill Colby, responded t o  the 

Attorney General, aRel 

d-- 96 i t  your opinion that. the Direc- 

tor o f  Central Intel 1 igence t o  the Attorney 

and normal i n  the conduct of Government, therefore, should either be 
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re fe r red  t o  the President o r  t o  the  National Secur i ty Council f o r  

zdjudicat ion.  And the f a c t  t ha t  t h i s  was no t  done on these various 

occasions always struck me as somewhat odd. 

up a D i rec to r  o f  Central I n te l l i gence  i s  t o  have a man t h a t  was inde- 

The whole th ing  o f  s e t t i n g  

pendent of a l l  these cabinet o f f i ce rs  i n  the Executive Branch so t h a t  
l“- 

he could make the President which kerv as unbiased and 

ob jec t i ve  as possible and weren’t contaminated by p o l i c y  considerations. 

Now t h a t  appl ies t o  the Attorney General, i t  seems t o  me,’las it appl ies ““’(r i-‘n~?rft 

t o  the Secretary o f  Labor and t o  the Secretary o f -S ta te ,  and t h a t  the 

Attorney General should have some p r i v i l e g e d  pos i t i on  v is-a-vis the 

D i  r e c t o r  doesn’t seem t o  me t o  make sense. 

Dick, t h i s  i s  a fasc inat ing subject and we could go on and discuss i t  

as f a r  as I ‘ m  concerned f o r  a week. 

you might, o r  may not  want t o  coment -on. 

B: 

I have only one more question which 

Let me put  i t  t h i s  way, i t  

seemed t o  me t h a t  Jim Schlesinger’s performance when he became the 

D i rec to r  o f  Central Intel l igence, i n i t i a l l y ,  he wasn’t there very long, 

was t o  c u t  t h e  Agency down t o  s i z e  which amounted t o  a c u t  o f  i t s  programs, 
. .  

and general ly take a s o r t  o f  housecleaning approach t o  the Agency. Have 

you any conment on t h a t ?  

H: I have no doubt that  t h a t  was h i s  a t t i t ude .  I have no doubt t h a t  was what 

President Nixon told him t o  do. 

f l y i n g  back from Texas w i t h  President Johnson, a f t e r  j u s t  having been 

It reminded me of: the time t h a t  I was 

appointed Deputy Director,with Admiral Raborn i n  h i s  stateroom i n  the 

plane and he was t a l k i n g  t o  us about the fu tu re  and so f o r t h  and he said, 

now I want you fel lows t o  get ou t  there and shake up the crockery, break 

things up, you know, shake tha t  place up. So i t  never seemed t o  me 
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t o  make any sense t o  shake i t  up,  so I never shook anything and he 

never mentioned i t  aga in  dnd I never mentioned i t  aga in .  

Carter gave the same k i n d  of instructions t o  Turner. 

them too seriously. 

And th i s  i s  a sort  o f  a '  way w i t h  Presidents when they make a change, 

you know, they want t o  see change, they want  to see something dramatic 

happen. 

thing about i t  and I t h i n k  t h a t  Schlesinger made a mistake and I - t h i n k '  

Turner made a mistake when they took these injunctions too seriously. 

There was also i n  Schlesinger's affair, I think,some k i n d  o f  a. resent- 

I t h i n k  

Turner took 

I t h i n k  Schlesinger took them too seriously. 

And i t  just never made sense to  me and so I never d id  any- 
' 

- 1 1  

ment, I'm n o t  too sure what 

End o f  Side  1 o f  Tape 2 

N o t h i n g  on Side 2 o f  Tape 2 
, 
1 

. .  
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